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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Clay County Courthouse is a two-story brick structure to which
stucco was applied in the 1950's. The building is bi-laterally
symmetrical in plan with the main facade facing north. As originally
constructed, the building had four nearly identical facades, each character-
ized by a central pavilion with tri-arched entrance, the columns of
which are cast iron. The central archway visually frames the double
doors through which the building is entered. New plate glass doors
have replaced the original wooden ones, although the framing pilasters,
transom, wainscoting and wooden paneling which surrounded them is still
intact. Unique to the structyre is the decorative metal cornice,

which is wide and heavily bracketed, and the decorative metal gable
above. The roof is a low hip with cross gables each terminating in
the metal pedimented gable. Rising from the roof are six brick
chimneys with corbeled caps and in addition, there is decorative

brick corbeling beneath the cornice and beneath the stone balustrade
which crowns each entrance. Within the central pavilion on each
facade and above the arched entrances are four pilasters which rise

to the cornice 'thus dividing the window space vertically. All first
floor windows are double hung sash with plain surrounds and brick
labels. On the second floor, windows are vertically elongated to
accommodate a third fixed pane--a treatment which also tends to
visually heighten the building.

There have been two major additiops to the structure to create
additional office space. In 192%, an entire wing was added to

the east side of the building which resembles the original structure.
This was done to create space for the offices of the Clerk of the
Circuit Court and the Tax Assessor. In 195%, a one-story addition was
made to the west side for the office of the county Judge. The

entire building and the east wing were stuccoed in 1957. Alterations
to the interior include extensive relocation of partitions. The
building, however, is in good condition and has been in continuous

use since its construction.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

On October 14, 1889, a tract of land was deeded from John and Ellen
Borden to the Clay CouEty Commissioners for the purpose of erecting a
new county courthouse. The previous September bids were let for con-
struction of the bullding and the contract awarded to W.A. McDuff for
the sum of $13,215.30. Architect A.E. McClure of Jacksonville was
selected to design the new building and he was paid the sum of $269.70
for preparing plans and specifications.3 McClure was soon to distinguish
himself as a designer of Florida courthouses for in 1891 he received
the commission for the magnificent Nassau County Courthouse at Fern-
andina Beach. The courthouse at Green Cove Springs was completed in
1890 and the minutes of the Nassau County Commissioners indicate that
several trips were made to see the building before a final design was
decided upon for the Fernandina building. Although the later structure
is somewhat more impressive in its general scale and attention to
ornamental detail, the two buildings are similar in their - stylistic
interpretation of a basically Renaissance mode. Wide bracketed eaves,
entrances recessed behind arcades, pedimented gables and decorative
brickwork earmark both buildings as being among the finest of A.E.
McClure's Victorian designs.

The Clay County Courthouse served as the seat of county government
continuously from 1890 until 1973 when the new courthouse was completed.
The building currently houses various public offices as well as the
Clay County Historical Museum and plans are underway to fully restore
the building to its original appearance. .

Florida has no ante-bellum courthouses and only a handful that
were constructed prior to 1900. Of those few which were built in the
late nineteenth century only the ones in Leon, Nassau, Osceola and Clay
counties are still standing. The structure is significant, not only
as the original seat of county government, but as a fine example of the
work of a local architect, A.E. McClure.

Florlda. Office of the Clerk of the Circuit Court. (Subgroup: Deed
- Book 12, pages 475-485).
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FOOTNOTES CONTINUED:

2Clay County Records, Clay County Courthouse, Green Cove Springs,
Florida. Office of the County Commission. (Subgroup: Book #2
County Commissioners Minute Books, page 233.

3

Ibid. page 234.

“After the devastating fire of 1901 which destroyed most of the
commercial downtown (North side of St. John's River) of Jacksonville,
Florida, A.E. McClure was one of the architects responsible for
the appearance of its new skyline.
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Early post card of the building showing the north and west sides
as they originally appeared.

Nassau County Records, Nassau County Courthouse, Fernandina

Beach, Florida. Office of the County Commission. (Subgroup:
Minute Books, Volume I, July 22, 1891, page 239).




